# Minutes of Neenah Central City Business Improvement District Board September 15, 2020 – 8:00 am

**PRESENT:** Board Members: Beth Stubing, George Brownell, Michelle Bauer, LeAnn Wasinger, Sandy White, Umer Sheikh, Bob Gillespie and Jane Lang. Also present: Sara Hanneman (Future Neenah, Inc.), Nikki Hessel (Future Neenah, Inc.), Samantha Jefferson (City of Neenah Community Development), Deputy Director Brad Schmidt (City of Neenah Community Development), Mayor Dean Kaufert and members of the public.

### Approval of Minutes: The minutes of the July 21, 2020 and August 18, 2020 were approved by unanimous consent.

## Public Appearances: None.

## Financials:

- Bills for Approval: MSC Gillespie/Sheikh, the BID Board to approve two bill packets for the amounts of \$2,083.96 and \$33,049.65. Motion passed.
- **Budget Status Report:** A question was raised about the remaining landscaping costs for the year. Assistant Director Hanneman explained that they still have budget money available for additional weeding but it may not be needed. Member Brownell said that he has heard many positive comments about the hanging flower baskets. Some of the larger amounts seen on the budget status report are \$952 from retention and recruitment funds and an additional \$420 for the audit report process. There is approximately \$10,000 left in the retention grant program/COVID projects fund.

## Executive Committee Report:

- No Meeting/No Report
- Fall Exec. Committee Meeting Schedule for September: 2021 Budget and officers will be discussed.

## Maintenance Committee Report:

- Fall Bulb Recycle Week: September 14-18
- **Report from September 9 Meeting:** Future Neenah had a meeting with Bob at Memorial Florists to discuss the flower plantings. Fall decorations will be put up soon. The committee discussed the downtown camera and WIFI project. Director Wenninger will be taking this to the city's Finance Committee and the Common Council in September or October. Deputy Director Schmidt explained that this is a part of a larger city project which also includes running fiber lines. The downtown area has been challenging due to property owners not allowing the new fiber to run along their rooftops. The team is looking for other alternatives.

FNI will be meeting with the snow removal company soon to plan for the coming winter season.

# **Recruitment and Retention Report:**

• No Meeting / No Report

### Public Relations and Marketing Committee Report:

**Report from September 10 Meeting:** Ultimate Ladies Day was held on September 12. Members said they heard many positive reviews of the event and that shoppers were happy that Future Neenah was able to hold the event in a safe way.

The Luminary Pop-Up and Cookie Crawl event will be held on December 17<sup>th</sup>. Cookies will be individually wrapped and other timed-release features will be used to allow for increased safety at the event.

The last farmer's market of the season will be held on October 17<sup>th</sup>. Small Business Saturday is November 28<sup>th</sup> and a gift certificate rewards event will be November 6<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup>.

A display at the Fox River Mall will again feature the downtown. There will be a page featuring the downtown in the Convention and Visitor's Guide. Future Neenah has been putting together welcome

packages for the ThedaCare employees that will begin working in the downtown in the coming months. Many businesses have included coupons for these packages.

A Very Neenah Christmas is being discussed and safety measures are being considered.

# **City of Neenah Updates:**

- Two downtown development projects will be breaking ground in the coming months. A 71-unit apartment building on the corner of Main and Millview will break ground in the fall. A 40-unit multi-use building on the corner of Wisconsin and Church will break ground in the spring.
- The City won the lawsuit that was brought against it by the residents of Lakeshore Avenue. The residents have asked the judge for a reconsideration and plan to appeal. An archeological dig is happening on the street now and the trail will begin being constructed when the dig is over.
- Green Bay Road is under construction and the contractor believes the project will be finished in approximately 45 days.
- The City purchased a large plot of land west of town that will allow for several hundred lots to be available for the construction of new homes.
- There is a new alderman in District 2, Brian Borchardt.
- The Mayor will be forming an Arrowhead Park Group to guide the development of the park.
- The Mayor and Director Haese have been in touch with the downtown businesses and have been assured that employees will be returning to work in the coming months. Budget money for a parking ramp is being considered.
- Money for a downtown plan has been requested for the 2021 budget.
- Deputy Director Schmidt recently received a draft of the South Commercial Street Plan. He hopes to bring that to Plan Commission and to the Council within the next month.
- Construction has begun on Cobblestone Creek Apartments on Winneconne Avenue. Fifty-three units will make up this market-rate complex.

# Future Neenah Updates:

- Lawlss Coffee has opened in the Marketplace in downtown Neenah.
- Executive Director Hessel discussed the changes that were made to events this year due to the pandemic and explained that some of these changes may be used in future years.
- The BID Operating Plan will be discussed at future meetings.

### Announcements and Future Agenda Items:

• Next Meeting – October 20

Adjournment: The Board adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Samethy

Samantha Jefferson Office Manager, Community Development